# Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes Approved February 20, 2013

Members present: Chairman Linda Murray, Vice-Chairman Sarah Silk, Dave Senecal,

Chuck Storm and Dave Bowers.

Members absent: None.

**Staff present:** Town Manager David W. Owen, Finance Director Pete Chamberlin,

Director of Public Works Dave Ford, Director of Parks and Recreation Ethan Hipple and Recording Secretary Amelia Capone-

Muccio.

Chairman Murray opened the meeting at 6:30 PM.

#### Non-Public Session

Mr. Owen stated a non-public session is not needed unless the Board would like to review non-public minutes.

The Board tabled review of non-public minutes until the next meeting.

## **Consideration of Minutes**

#### ≥ 2/05/13

Chairman Murray amended page one, the last paragraph, line four change "vehicle" to "highway garage".

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to accept the minutes of February 5, 2013 as amended. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

#### > 2/06/13

Ms. Silk amended page one, the third line from the bottom to add the following to the sentence: "as the contract notes it is 10% of the settlement". She added the following to page nine under Committee Reports: "Carroll County Transit now provides transportation to White Mountain Medical Center located on Rt. 16 in Wakefield".

Chairman Murray amended page four, the last paragraph above the last motion, to switch the word "from" to "to" and the word "to" to "for". She amended page five, the fifth paragraph to change the word "Public Works" to "Highway".

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to accept the minutes of February 6, 2013 as amended. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

# **Public Input**

Marshall Hewitt of 43 Lang Pond Road joined the Board for discussion to briefly express some residents concern about the continuing dust and erosion deterioration of Lang Pond Road in Wolfeboro. He provided a 17 page document outlining their concerns, including pictures and other documentation regarding the ongoing dust problem. (See attached document for more information)

Mr. Bowers questioned if there are regulations on logging.

Mr. Hewitt replied he contacted NH DES and they do not have any.

Chairman Murray questioned the portion of the road being in Tuftonboro.

Dave Ford (Director of Public Works) replied that the town line is in the area of 50 Lang Pond Road and noted he will be meeting with the Town of Tuftonboro on March 12, 2013 at 9:30 where they could go to further discuss the issues.

Chairman Murray thanked him for the information and the Board will take it under advisement.

## **Public Hearings**

# **Temporary Event Permits**

A. Back Bay Hockey Association to hold a Plunge on March 24, 2013 (ice date May 4, 2013) from 8:30 AM to Noon at Carry Beach.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Cynthia White joined the Board for discussion and explained that this is a new fundraiser for the Hockey program and they will check the lake one week before the event and will advise if they will need to postpone the event. She questioned if the lot is plowed in the winter season.

Ethan Hipple (Director of Parks and Recreation) replied it is to allow access to the lake.

Ms. White questioned if they are able to use the street for parking.

Chairman Murray replied that she does not believe they will but advised they should check with the Police Department.

Being no others to speak for or against the request, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Ms. Silk noted they should apply for a sign permit if needed.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for Back Bay Hockey Association to hold a Plunge on March 24, 2013 (ice date May 4, 2013) from 8:30 AM to Noon at Carry Beach. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

B. Brewster Academy to hold On the Green I-Arts & Crafts Festival on July 5-7, 2013 from 10:00 AM-5:00 PM (Sunday until 4:00 PM) at Brewster Academy Monument Field.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Christine Brown joined the Board and stated this is an annual event run as in years past and that these programs help fund day student scholarships.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Ms. Silk noted they will need tent and sign permits.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for Brewster Academy to hold On the Green I-Arts & Crafts Festival on July 5-7, 2013 from 10:00 AM-5:00 PM (Sunday until 4:00 PM) at Brewster Academy Monument Field. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

C. Brewster Academy to hold Summer Tradition-Arts & Crafts Festival on July 19-21, 2013 from 10:00 AM-5:00 PM (Sunday until 4:00 PM) at Brewster Academy Monument Field.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Christine Brown joined the Board and stated this is an annual event run as in years past and that these programs help fund day student scholarships.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Ms. Silk noted they will need tent and sign permits.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for Brewster Academy to hold Summer Tradition-Arts & Crafts Festival on July 19-21, 2013 from 10:00 AM-5:00 PM (Sunday until 4:00 PM) at Brewster Academy Monument Field. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

D. Brewster Academy to hold On the Green II-Arts & Crafts Festival on August 9-11, 2013 from 10:00 AM-5:00 PM (Sunday until 4:00 PM) at Brewster Academy Monument Field.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Christine Brown joined the Board and stated this is an annual event run as in years past and that these programs help fund day student scholarships.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Ms. Silk noted they will need tent and sign permits.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for Brewster Academy to hold On the Green II-Arts & Crafts Festival on August 9-11, 2013from 10:00 AM-5:00 PM (Sunday until 4:00 PM) at Brewster Academy Monument Field . Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

E. NH Boat Museum to hold Model Yacht Regattas on April 2-November 19, 2013, Tuesdays only, from 12:00 Noon to 5:00 PM off the Bridge Falls Path.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Mark Whitehead joined the Board and stated this is the Tuesday Model Boat sailing they have run on Tuesdays in the past.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing. She noted their insurance expires on June 21<sup>st</sup> and will need to submit a new certificate.

Ms. Silk noted they will need a sign permit.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for NH Boat Museum to hold Model Yacht Regattas on April 2-November 19, 2013, Tuesdays only, from 12:00 Noon to 5:00 PM off the Bridge Falls Path. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

F. NH Boat Museum to hold International Footy Regatta on May 4, 2013 from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM off the Bridge Falls Path and to have a tent set up.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Mark Whitehead joined the Board and stated this is new event for radio controlled boats (12") and there will be about 15 of them.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Ms. Silk noted they will need a tent permit.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for NH Boat Museum to hold International Footy Regatta on May 4, 2013 from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM off the Bridge Falls Path and to have a tent set up. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

G. (NH Boat Museum to hold a National 1 M Soling Regatta on June 21-23, 2013 from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM off the Bridge Falls Path and to have two tents set up.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Mark Whitehead joined the Board and stated this is the championship for the Tuesday sailing boats and noted they will run a practice on the 21<sup>st</sup>.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Ms. Silk questioned what a soling is.

Mr. Whitehead replied it is a class of boat, which was shrunk to 1 meter and noted they will seek permission to use the parking at the Railroad Station for back up if needed.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for NH Boat Museum to NH Boat Museum to hold a National 1 M Soling Regatta on June 21-23, 2013 from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM off the Bridge Falls Path and to have two tents set up (practice on 6/21/13). Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

H. Hospital Aid Association, Inc. to hold the 76<sup>th</sup> Hospital Aid Street Fair on August 2-3, 2013 (tents erected July 28<sup>th</sup> and removed August 5<sup>th</sup>) on Monument Field.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Bob and Jane Wass joined the Board for discussion and stated this is the 76<sup>th</sup> annual event and their 11<sup>th</sup> year volunteering.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Ms. Silk noted the notes on the permit and stepped down from the vote.

Member Chuck Storm moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for Hospital Aid Association, Inc. to hold the 76<sup>th</sup> Hospital Aid Street Fair on August 2-3, 2013 (tents erected July 28<sup>th</sup> and removed August 5<sup>th</sup>) on Monument Field. Dave Bowers seconded. Members voted (Sarah Silkabstained) and being none opposed, the motion passed.

I. Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold Bike and Walk to School and Work Day on May 10, 2013 from 7:00 AM to 10:00 AM throughout the town.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Ethan Hipple joined the Board for discussion and stated this is an annual event that is well attended.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold Bike and Walk to School and Work Day on May 10, 2013 from 7:00 AM to 10:00 AM throughout the town. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

J. Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold Movies in the Park on June 14-August 23, 2013 (Fridays only) from dusk to 11:00 PM at Foss Field.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Ethan Hipple joined the Board for discussion and stated this is family event where they will show PG-13 movies and will sell concessions.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold Movies in the Park on June 14-August 23, 2013 (Fridays only) from dusk to 11:00 PM at Foss Field. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

K. Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold the Granite Kid Triathlon on July 20, 2013 from 7:00 AM to 1:00 PM (event starts at 9:00 AM) beginning and ending at Brewster Beach.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Ethan Hipple joined the Board for discussion and stated this is the 22<sup>nd</sup> annual event and the only change will be an additional Police Officer.

Chairman Murray stated she also received some feedback due to the increased amount of kids to put a divider down Clark Road.

Mr. Hipple agreed they will be addressing such and may need to put a cap on the number of participants.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold the Granite Kid Triathlon on July 20, 2013 from 7:00 AM to 1:00 PM (event starts at 9:00 AM) beginning and ending at Brewster Beach. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

L. Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold the 32<sup>nd</sup> Granite Man Triathlon on August 17, 2013 from 6:00 AM to 1:00 PM (event starts at 9:00 AM) beginning and ending at Carry Beach.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Ethan Hipple joined the Board for discussion and stated this is the 32<sup>nd</sup> annual event.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold the 32<sup>nd</sup> Granite Man Triathlon on August 17, 2013 from 6:00 AM to 1:00 PM (event starts at 9:00 AM) beginning and ending at Carry Beach. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed

M. Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold the 22<sup>nd</sup> Turkey Trot Race on November 23, 2013 from 7:00 AM to 1:00 PM (event starts at 10:00 AM) beginning and ending at the Railroad Station.

Chairman Murray opened the public hearing.

Ethan Hipple joined the Board for discussion and stated this annual event held the Saturday before Thanksgiving.

Being no others to speak for or against the permit, Chairman Murray closed the public hearing.

Member Sarah Silk moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Temporary Event Permit for Wolfeboro Parks & Recreation Department to hold the 22<sup>nd</sup> Turkey Trot Race on November 23, 2013 from 7:00 AM to 1:00 PM (event starts at 10:00 AM) beginning and ending at the Railroad Station. Chuck Storm seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed

### **Bulk Vote**

## A. Weekly Manifests:

- 1. Manifest dated February 15, 2013
- 2. Manifest dated February 22, 2013

# **B.** Property Tax Abatements/Refunds

## **Approvals**

i.	Storytelling Rock Road	Tax Map 214, Lot 11
ii.	580 Pine Hill Road	Tax Map 127, Lot 1
iii.	44 Warren Sands Road	Tax Map 237, Lot 4
iv.	680 N. Main St. Unit 6	Tax Map 142, Lot 10-15
٧.	680 N. Main St. Unit 7	Tax Map 142, Lot 10-16

# C. Property Tax Credits/Exemptions

i. 7 Sandstrom Road Tax Map 110, Lot 9

#### D. Raffle Permits:

- i. Hospital Aid Association, Inc.
- ii. High Hopes Foundation of New Hampshire, Inc.

Chairman Murray stated she would like to remove iii to v in section B as she did not have time to seek clarity from the Assessing Department.

<u>It was moved by Linda Murray for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen remove items iii – v in B from the Bulk Vote. Sarah Silk seconded.</u>

#### **DISCUSSION:**

Mr. Owen stated that it is his understanding it is a change in the land use tax due to an error.

Chairman Murray stated she questions the acreage of 9.6 acres when it should be 10.

Mr. Senecal stated that he would like to table them all as he has a question on i and ii.

<u>Dave Senecal amend the motion to include i and ii. Linda Murray seconded. Being none opposed, the motion passed.</u>

It was moved by Sarah Silk for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the rest of the Bulk Vote items (A, C & D) as submitted. Dave Bowers seconded. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

#### **New Business**

A. Commercial Vessel Landing Permit-Winnipesaukee Flagship Corp. d/b/a Mt. Washington Cruises

Jim Morash joined the Board for discussion and stated they plan to run the same schedule as last year.

It was moved by Chuck Storm for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the issuance of a Commercial Vessel Landing Permit to the Winnipesaukee Flagship Co. d/b/a Mt. Washington Cruises. Dave Bowers seconded. Being none opposed, the motion passed.

B. Steve Guyer, President of Wolfeboro Community TV re: Deliberative Session Broadcast problems

Steve Guyer joined the Board and stated that he is the new President of Wolfeboro Community TV and he has brought with him the school District's IT Director, Dave Lane, to discuss the issues with the broadcast of the Deliberative Session. He stated that there seems to be a problem broadcasting from the Kingswood Art Center and they are actively looking into the problem. They believe it may have been because of using a 3<sup>rd</sup> party internet service, but are not sure. He stated for the future they will have the IT staff on hand and have also been discussing the use of a "sling box" as well as broadcasting to Metrocast in Belmont.

Dave Lane stated that they apologize for the issues with the broadcast and are working on a solution to prevent the same from happening in the future. He is currently job shadowing Peter Pijoan as well as making contacts with other schools to see how they do it.

Chairman Murray thanked them for coming and taking the time to explain the situation.

Mr. Guyer stated he has a lot of faith in the IT Department and if they have to make some sacrifices to be able to broadcast the Deliberative Session as well as the schools meeting they will.

Peter Pijoan stated a "sling box" is a device they used previously at the library when they had problems with the internet connection, which was resolved by getting a line dedicated to the broadcast. He stated the broadcast to Belmont/Metrocast would be a dedicated fiber line.

## C. Adoption of NH Flexible Benefit Plan

Mr. Owen stated that the new flexible benefit plan has been in effect since the first of the year, and the firm that administers is has requested such be adopted formally.

It was moved by Sarah Silk for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen with respect to the adoption of the Town of Wolfeboro, NH Flexible Benefit Plan (the "Plan"), the following resolutions are hereby adopted:

RESOLVED: That the Plan be adopted in the form attached hereto, which Plan is hereby adopted and approved;

RESOLVED FURTHER: that the appropriate officers of the Company be, and they hereby are, authorized and directed to execute the Plan on behalf of the Company;

RESOLVED FUTHER: that the officers of the Company be, and they hereby are, authorized and directed to take any and all actions and execute and deliver such documents as they may deem necessary, appropriate or convenient to effect the foregoing resolutions including, with limitation, causing to be prepared and filed such reports, documents or other information as may be required under applicable law.

Chuck Storm seconded. Being none opposed, the motion passed.

## D. Monthly Budget Expenditures and Revenue Report

Pete Chamberlin joined the Board for discussion and noted that he has backed out accrued payroll.

Chairman Murray noted the budget is slow at this point until the new budget is passed.

## E. Posting of Weight Limits on Town Roads

Dave Ford joined the Board for discussion and stated that at this point he is not ready to post the roads until sometime in March, but would like to have such approved in order to put in place when the time comes. Chairman Murray stated he will provide the normal exemptions.

Mr. Ford replied he does have exemptions for delivery vehicles, etc. They need to contact the Public Works Department to make arrangements.

It was moved by Chuck Storm for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the request of the Director of Public Works to post selected town roads with a 10-ton weight limit with an effective date set by the Public Works Director. Dave Bowers seconded. Being none opposed, the motion passed.

# F. NH DOT's 10-year Transportation Improvement Plan-Wolfeboro's Priority Projects

Dave Ford joined the Board for discussion and stated that the State has a 10-year Transportation Improvement Plan that they update every two years. He stated that the improvements from Pickering Corner to the Wolfeboro/Alton Town line have been a priority but have been moved off the list due to State funding. He stated that each year the Planning Commission make application to be on the list and he is seeking the Board's support for this project to be included again.

Chairman Murray stated the town has put in \$99,000 for preliminary design and looked at three alternatives.

Mr. Ford replied yes, it was adopted by the Board as a plan and is now moving to the engineering phase. He stated this is a \$7 million dollar project that is supported by the Chamber of Commerce and the Planning Board.

Mr. Owen stated there is a House Bill to increase the gas tax by four cents for three years and to raise the vehicle registration by \$15 which seems to be generating a lot of support. He stated that 1/3<sup>rd</sup> of the State Roads are now classified in poor condition.

It was moved by Sarah Silk for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve and sign the letter to the NH Department of Transportation in support of including NH Route 28 Improvements in the State's 10-year Transportation Improvements Program. Chuck Storm seconded. Being none opposed, the motion passed.

# Highway Garage Fire Update

Mr. Ford stated that a fire investigator came to review the scene from International Trucks and they have not heard from Primex with regards to the value of loss. He stated they do need a place to store equipment and he provided a proposed lease for Harriman's two-bay garage adjacent to the Public Works Garage.

Mr. Owen stated he has forwarded the proposed lease to Town Counsel.

Chairman Murray stated that she would like time to review the lease.

Mr. Bowers stated they need to do something to provide storage of the equipment and he is fine with it as long as Town Counsel reviews it.

Ms. Silk stated they meet again on March 6<sup>th</sup>, and they have a policy not to submit things at meetings.

It was moved by Dave Bowers for the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to approve the lease with Harriman Construction for the lease of the two-bay garage contingent upon Town Counsel review. Chuck Storm seconded.

#### **DISCUSSION:**

Mr. Senecal stated he is fine with the lease as long as Town Counsel reviews it; they need to provide storage for the equipment.

Ms. Silk would like a provision regarding hazardous waste on the site stating the Town is not responsible for pre-existing issues.

Chairman Murray questioned the cost to heat the facility.

Brad Harriman replied the building has not been heated in six years. It would depend on use but it is oil forced hot air.

Mr. Ford replied it would most likely be less than they budgeted for now as it is a smaller space.

Chairman Murray asked Mr. Harriman if he would agree to a clause regarding the hazardous waste.

Mr. Harriman replied he would.

# Members voted, Sarah Silk-opposed all others in favor, the motion passed.

## G. Parks & Recreation Facility Use Permits-Guidelines and Fees

Ethan Hipple joined the Board for discussion and provided the proposed draft Facility Recurring-Use permit. He stated they have already been doing such on some level and felt it should be formalized as well as a new inquiry of a local business that would like to rent Paddleboards at a Town Beach. He stated that he proposes allowing one vendor per location and limiting it to local businesses.

Ms. Silk suggested adding some language that an insurance certificate should be provided and reminder alcoholic beverages are not allowed on town property.

Chairman Murray stated she has an issue with the vendors and would like to see a specific spot outlined and when the permit would renew.

Mr. Hipple replied the permit would need to be renewed, but the location would be determined on a case by case review.

Mr. Bowers questioned how he would choose the vendor.

Mr. Hipple replied the permit would go to the existing vendor.

Chairman Murray stated that she has a concern that there is no set location and, for example, there is not a lot of space at Albee Beach on a hot summer day and she hates to make it worse by adding a commercial business. She is fine with the rest of the permit except the commercial part.

Mr. Hipple replied it will be tough to define the specific location as they don't know what someone may propose.

Chairman Murray guestioned if they will allow storage at the beach.

Mr. Hipple replied in regards to the current request, they will not.

Chairman Murray stated she has a strong concern about having a commercial business at the town beaches.

Mr. Hipple stated the reason he supported it was because it was a good way for the public to participate in recreational activity.

It was moved by Sarah Silk and seconded by Chuck Storm to have the revisions discussed above made to the draft and to submit if for further discussion at the Board's March 6<sup>th</sup> meeting. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

## H. Parks & Recreation 2013 Summer Programs Fee Rates

Ethan Hipple joined the Board for discussion and provided the proposed 2013 Summer Program rates and reviewed it with the Board. It shows some increases in program rates.

Chairman Murray stated with regard to the rate schedule she appreciates the discussion she had with Mr. Hipple today and thanked him.

Ms. Silk stated that she applauds his efforts to provide a variety of programs at reasonable rates.

It was moved by Chuck Storm and seconded by Sarah Silk to approve the 2013 Sumner Program Fee rates as presented. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

#### I. Voters Guide 2013

Mr. Owen provided the draft 2013 Voters Guide and stated it will be published in the March 7<sup>th</sup> edition of the Granite State News.

Chairman Murray suggested adding the information about the costs of Bond Anticipation Notes (BAN) interest regarding the bonded items.

Mr. Owen replied such language is included in the Warrant Articles and felt the intent of the guide was to provide a description of the article, but if the Board would like such included he will put it in.

Mr. Bowers stated he feels it is fine the way it is.

Ms. Silk questioned if the Deliberative Session will be shown again.

Mr. Pijoan replied it will run the weekend before the election.

It was moved by Dave Senecal and seconded by Sarah Silk to approve the Voters Guide for 2013 as submitted for publication in the Granite State News. Members voted and being none opposed, the motion passed.

# J. Town Election preparation

The Board agreed all members would be available all day at the polls.

Chuck Storm requested review by the Town Attorney if he is able to be in the building.

# **Any Other Business**

Chairman Murray reminded the public next week is Winter Carnival and the pancake breakfast will be March 2<sup>nd</sup> at Garwoods from 7:00 AM to 10:00 PM, Belgian Horse rides at Abenaki and a movie on Wednesday along with other activities.

Ms. Silk noted the Freestyle Division Ski Team had 60 competitors and 300 hundred spectators with 10 Abenaki team members taking top spots. She also asked if the Emergency Response Committee has a storm checklist listed on the website.

Mr. Owen replied he would check.

## **Town Manager's Report**

Mr. Owen reported the following:

- An Employee fell in the parking lot today and was taken to the emergency room and fortunately nothing was broken, but is sore.
- A news release was sent regarding the State Aid Grant funding for the waste water reimbursement of bonds and that \$3 million dollars has been included in the budget, but such will not be enough to cover all the bonds.
- He received communication from NH DOT that they plan to replace guardrails on Rt. 28 from Wolfeboro Falls out to the area of Rt. 109 (near 7 Eleven).
- The town has received its new Tax Equalization Rate at 105.8%, which is up from last year, but is still within acceptable range.
- Three incumbent Hawkers & Peddlers have provided their renewed requests and one spot remains open.

- They have received the Customer Satisfaction Survey results at this point with an 11.7% response rate and it seems based on such the building permit process is being well received.
- The Town reports are printed and have been shipped; they will be available next week.
- He will be out of the office the first week of March and Mr. Houseman will be staffing the next Board meeting.

#### **DISCUSSION:**

Chairman Murray stated in regards to the surveys that only 3.7% reported an unpleasant experience and noted the Administrative Assistant got the highest approval rating.

Mr. Bowers stated it seems that Department got some bad press in the pass and that the survey was a good idea.

Mr. Owen noted the intent was to do the survey for a full year.

## **Committee Reports**

Mr. Storm reported the Planning Board met to discuss a change in the office area at Piping Rock and GI Plastek will be expanding and almost doubling in size. They continue to review the Rt. 28 corridor.

Chairman Murray reported she also attended the following:

- She attended the Chamber's monthly meeting.
- She attended the EDC meeting in which they discussed the website and some additions
  for Economic Development and an EDC page too. She noted they also discussed
  providing a link for commercial real estate for sale to help promote business to come to
  Wolfeboro and they are also looking at a section of Lehner Street for revitalization.

Ms. Silk reported the following:

- She attended the Hazardous Waste Meeting in Alton where they discussed the DEA's take back program and its advertising. She stated they will be having a collection in April, but Alton will not participate as they take medications all the time.
- The intermunicpal agreement will be discussed at the Board's next meeting and noted that the Town of Tuftonboro is seeking to become a member and it is the 10<sup>th</sup> year renewal for Wolfeboro and Alton and such will need to be addressed before the collections start for the year.

#### **Public Comment**

Peter Pijoan stated that the weekend prior to Town Elections on March 12<sup>th</sup>, WCTV will run the Deliberative Session on Channel 26 Friday to Sunday.

Chairman Murray noted candidates night will be March 7<sup>th</sup> at 7:00 PM at the Wolfeboro Public Library and elections will be March 12<sup>th</sup> at All Saint's Episcopal Church from 8:00 AM to 7:00 PM.

#### **Questions from the Press**

None.

Being no further business before the Board, Chairman Murray entertained a motion to adjourn.

Member Chuck Storm moved the Wolfeboro Board of Selectmen to adjourn at 9:08 PM. Member Dave Bowers seconded. Being none opposed, the motion passed.

Respectfully submitted, **Amelia Capone-Muccio** Recording Secretary